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Avoca

Ellicott City

Private 18th & 19th Centuries

Avoca was once called Chews Resolution Manor which was patented in 1695 by
Samuel Chew and comprised twelve hundred acres. It was resurveyed in January
25, 1718, and is noteworthy as the county residence of Dr. Arthur Pue of Baltimore
City who _acquired the property in 1802 and built the front section at about this
time. In 1898 Alfred V. Thomas bought 176 acres with the Dr. Pue's mansion house
and named it Avoca.

Constructed in three sections, it is one of the outstanding buildings of
Howard County. A three bay wide, one room deep, one story high, stone structure
has been raised to a second story and connects to Dr. Pue's five bay wide, one room
deep, three story high, ashlar granite block, gabled roof mansion facing east by a,
three bay wide, one room deep, two story high stone structure whose south wall holds
a two story open porch with entrances to the east and west wings of the house.

Mature trees as well as stone dependencies surround this exceptionally fine
stone house which evokes the ante bellum period in Howard County.
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Avoca is a three sectional stone house located on the west
side of 0ld Montgomery Road south of Avoca Drive.

East Section - Main Body of House

The east section is a five bay wide, one room deep, three
story granite block and stone, gabled roof house, facing east
with central hallway and east and west entrances. Brick chim-
neys are inset into the center of its north and south walls.

East Elevation of East Wing

The central east entrance is a double paneled door with
four lite transom, flanked by four vertical lites and surmounted
by a flat granite lintel. All fenestration is rectangular,
double-hung, vertically alligned, proportionally scaled with
projecting wooden sills and flat granite block lintels. Base-
ment windows are two-two lite casement windows with iron bars
set into their granite sills and lintels. The stone on the
east elevation is ashlar granite with a beige hue which has
been proportionally scaled. The attic or third floor windows
are eye brow double-hung windows with three-over-three lites,
similar in all other respects to the larger windows.

South and North Elevations of East Wing

The north elevation holds a first .and second floor window,
similar to those described in the west bay. Two north and
south elevation small rectangular third floor double-hung
windows are decorated with shutters. Cellar windows, similar
to -those described are located in the west bay of the north
and south wall.

West Elevation of East Wing

The west elevation holds two first floor windows in the
first two south bays with cellar door centered beneath, char-
acterized by wide granite block steps and encasing. A second
floor window lies in the first south bay and a third floor
eyebrow window lies in the first south bay and a third floor
eye brow window is centered over the first and second floor
rectangular entrances which open on to the two story flat
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roofed porch connecting the west wing to the east wing respec-
tively. Nineteen wooden steps and railing on the south lead to
the second floor of the two story open porch which runs along
the south elevation of the connector.

Early Stone House Connector

An early stone house is connected to the main house by
an early three bay wide, one room deep, two story high con-
nector, which has a single first and second floor rectangular
window with two-over-two lites on its north wall. The south
wall holds two first and second floor windows and first and
second floor rectangular entrances surmounted by three & two
lite transoms. Its gabled roof runs east-west, covering the
older stone structure and settling against the west wall of
the newer part of the house which faces east.

The south elevation has similar fenestration and was
perhaps the early main extension of the original stone struc-
ture.

North Wall of All Three Structures Contiguous

The north wall of the house is the most interesting as
it tells the story of how the house was first constructed. A
line between the old stone house and connecter is very well
marked up to the projecting stone lintel of the second floor
window of the early west or kitchen wing. Here it stops, leading
us to believe that the early structure was a two story high depen-
dency of some sort, probably for slave quarters or food storage
as bars are located in the cellar window similar to those on the
east wing. Its flat stone lintel is gray granite while the first
floor rectangular window is beige granite, similar to the north
wall first floor window of the connector. This original stone
building was a two bay wide, one room deep stone dwelling with
wide brick chimney set into its east wall. A ground floor east
entrance and a second floor west entrance were located in the
south bay of those walls. When the building was enlarged and
a two story high, three bay wide east wing added to the east
wall, a second floor was added and the gabled roof line was
probably changed at this time from a north-south orientation to
an east-west orientation. There is no break in the masonry of
the north wall of the east wing and connector on the first floor
level which leads to a belief that when the east wing was con-
structed, a one story high connector was also constructed to
unify the east wing with the original old stone quarters. Soon
after a second floor was added and you see the break between the
east wing and connector, and between the west wing and connecter.
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In addition, the flat stone lintels used here are gray rather
than beige, belying, a different stage of construction.

Early Stone Structure

The earliest part of the house is a two bay.wide, two bay
deep, three story high (on the west elevation) gabled roof
stone structure.

South Elevation of 0l1ld Stone House & Connector

The first and second floor porch along the south elevation
of the old stone structure and connector was very early enclosed
on the south west corner creating a one bay wide, two bay deep,
two story high shed roof, frame addition which was constructed
on a stone foundation. The west wall of the stone foundation
indicates the addition of this corner. Fenestration is similar
to the rest of the house.

West Elevation of Early Stone Structure

A batton wood door opens into a root cellar on the west
wall of this later foundation while a rectangular ground floor,
entrance leads into what originally was the dirt floor kitchen
of the stone house.

A flat roofed partially enclosed, two story high porch
( on north side ) has a stone base with nine wooden steps and
railing leading from the center of the west wall northward to
the second floor landing (first floor on the east elevation).

The second floor of the west wall of the west wing holds
two early rectangular windows with six-over-six original lites.
They are very early with original panes.

OUTER BUILDINGS

0ld Well

An old circular well lies west of the early stone house.

Three stone structures lie northwest of the house, the most
westerly being a two bay wide, one bay deep, one and a half story
high, gabled roof (running east-west) stone structure. It is
characterized by flat stone lintels and stone quoining. The
entrance is in the east bay of the south wall. Bars are on the
west bay window of this wall. Rectangular, attic windows are
located on the east and west walls, one very large one on the
west wall. Foundation stones for a carriage house lie west of
this structure.




Avoca Description HO-422
Page 4 District 2

On the south side of the driveway is a one story high, shed
roofed stone structure with bars at a small square window, which

is located in the west bay of the south wall. It is now used to
store hay.
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Avoca was once the Manor House for Chew's Resolution
Manor which dates back to the land grant of 1695 patented to
Samuel Chew comprising 1073 acres. Samuel Chew married Ann
Ayres, daughter of the well known Puritan, William Ayres.

He is known for laying out Herrington for which a patent was
issued circa 1660. 1In 1660 Samuel Chew served as a delegate
to Anne Arundel County and as a Justice six years later.
Colonel William Burgess and Colonel Samuel Chew were ordered
to go against the Indians on the Severn in 16753.

Avoca was originally a part of Chews Resolution Manor
and Chews Vineyard which comprised twelve hundred acres
which covered all the land from Columbia Pike to Elkridge
Landing Road. 1In 1802 it was owned by Edward Hill Dorsey
who sold the property to Arthur Pue (See liber N.H. 16 folio
486 Anne Arundel County.

An indenture (E.P.H. 7-2-305 of Howard County) made the
31 of January, 1848 between Rebecca R. Pue, widow of Doctor
Arthur Pue, late of Baltimore City and Michael Pue, Arthur

Pue, Priscilla M. Pue, Eliza R. Pue, Rebecca A. Carrol, wife
of Charles Carrol and Maria Thomas wife of Charles Thomas,
children of Doctor Arthur Pue ended in further negotiation
which resulted in Michael Pue owning and making his residence
at Avoca. Dr. Pue is located on the 1860 Martinet Map (see
attachment 3). .

On the 19 March, 1878 (LJW 39-89, Howard County Land
Records) James MacKubin as the executor of the last will and
testament of Michael Pue granted to Alfred W. Thomas in fee
simple "all that piece or parcel of a tract of land'called
""Chews Resolution Manor', for $13,000.

Four additional transactions were noted:

(1) Michael Pue to William Timanus (179 Acres)

(2) Michael Pue to James Clark

(3) Michael Pue to Doctor Stocket (8 3/4 Acres)

(4) Michael Pue to Mrs. Elizabeth Fisher (2 Acres)

The Hopkins Atlas of 1878 (see attachment 4) notes the

residence of Alfred Thomas comprising 176 acres and called

- T06
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"Avoca''.

On June 11, 1906 (WWLC82-275- Howard County Land Records)
Alfred W. Thomas granted to James Clark Thomas, as trustee the
property with the provision that it was '"'subject to the right
to the said Alfred W. and Emma.W. Thomas to use, occupy and
enjoy a room (the room on the second floor that the said A.J.
Thomas has been accustomed to occupy) in the dwelling house on
the aforesaid property for and during the period of their natural
lives".

On December 10, 1914 (HBN 104-430) the deed was granted and
conveyed by Alfred V. Thomas and wife to James Clark Thomas. The
will of Marian Brian Thomas, his wife (MFB 7-128-Wills, Howard
County) left the property to Marian Emily McCloskey. On Dec. 3,
1950 (MWB 229-78) Emily Thomas McCloskey sold the property to
Harvey W. Eschenbach and wife, and another portion to Paul T. and
Evelyn McHenry (MWB 261-424),

On June 27, 1959 Mr. Paul T. McHenry granted 5.3735 acres to
Edward and Virginia Bethard (RHM 334-576).

A plat hanging on the wall of the Howard County Historical
Society shows Doctor Arthur Pue's Land and is dated Sept. 4, 1835.
Wheatfields is not indicated on the plat map and neither is Mount
Joy, once called Sante Fe. It indicates that Chews Resolution
Manor on which Dr. Pue's mansion house is indicated was resurveyed
Jan. 25, 1718. 1t is very possible that the stone quarters at
Mt. Joy, Wheatfield and the first stone section of Avoca date from
as early as 1718.

The connector between the stone house and front section whose
facade faces Montgomery Road may well date from 1802 or earlier
since buildings and premises are mentioned in the deed of 1802.

The front section was probably built by Dr. Arthur Pue some-
time between 1802 and 1810. The log supporting beams in the cellar
would support this early date. By 1835 it was established and the
Plat Map notes it as Dr. Pues Mansion House.

Architecturally, Avoca is one of Howard County's most out-
standing granite structures with unusually fine symetry and
proportions, built in three sections in three periods of time
which have been exceptionally and pleasingly well integrated.

For these reasons Avoca, once called Chew's Resolution Manor
should be considered for the National Register of Historic Places,
the State Critical Planning Program and any future local land mark
legislation.
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Note: On 14 Nov., 1832 an indenture was placed on the property
by Robert Nicholas Worthington who loaned $16,000 to Dr. Arthur
Pue. This was paid and on Nov. 21, 1841 Mr. Worthington conveyed
the property back to Dr. Pue. The deed mentions buildings on
all said lands as well as rents of the property.
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